


*If you have any questions, please email us at foi@vancouver.ca and we will respond to you as
soon as possible. Or you can call the FOI Case Manager at 604.871.6584.

Encl.
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From: "Boldt, James" <james.boldt@vancouver.ca>
To:  "John Abraham" <jabraham@pci-group.com>
Date:  3/24/2020 2:50:47 PM
Subject:  RE: 3609-3687 Arbutus St - checklist

Hi John — see below in red:

From: John Abraham [mailto:jabraham@pci-group.com]
Sent: Tuesday, March 24, 2020 1:52 PM

To: Boldt, James

Subject: [EXTERNAL] RE: 3609-3687 Arbutus St - checklist

City of Vancouver Cybersecurity WARNING: This is an external email. Do not click links or open
attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Hi James,
Thanks for the attached checklist. Please see below a couple of questions.

1. Can you send a copy of the Rezoning application form? Yep I'll send. | really don’t know why we ask for this
anymore but I'll send it anyway...

2. Based on Schedule 2, Section 3C of the Schedule of Fees, our rezoning application fee would be ~$69,000 as
our site is 3,063 meter squared. Can you confirm? I'll confirm- our computer generates the required amount
once we set up the application at intake, although for smaller sites it defaults to a minimum.

3. TDM Plan —we’re not asking for any parking reduction beyond the rental by-law, what do we require in this
case? Sometimes they (Engineering) ask for just a part of it to be filled out just so there’s a record of what’s
proposed. But if you aren’t proposing any reductions then you could forego the TDM worksheets at this
point in time.

4. TAMS - We have one drafted and are preparing to have it as part of our rezoning submission. I’ve never seen
one actually. I'll check with Rosemarie in Engineering. But for now | wouldn’t do this. Sometimes we wait
until we hear from the community (City led open house in this case) what the specific issues are before doing
this...

5. QS elemental cost report — can you confirm if we need this? You don’t need it at this stage. It is likely that it
won’t be required if we aren’t talking about a negotiated CAC (sorry that’s a double negative). Could we also
have a copy of the DCL waiver form? I'll send

Let me know if you would like to connect over the phone as well.

Thanks for the clarity on the number of copies required to submit and noted on potential future requests for
materials.

Best,

John

From: Boldt, James <james.boldt@vancouver.ca>
Sent: March 24, 2020 12:46 PM

To: John Abraham <jabraham@pci-group.com>
Subject: RE: 3609-3687 Arbutus St - checklist

HI John — here is the checklist. | didn’t go over it in any detail so let me know if there’s a concern about anything or
need clarification. | put a question mark where | wasn’t sure depending on the issue (i.e. tenants, groundwater etc. ).

For now we are going to be doing remote submissions so I've just listed “1” for number of copies — we won’t be
taking in any printed material or large sets of drawings etc. but some staff may request these later.

From: John Abraham [mailto:jabraham@pci-group.com]
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Sent: Tuesday, March 24, 2020 11:41 AM
To: Boldt, James; Huang, Emily
Subject: [EXTERNAL] RE: 3609-3687 Arbutus St

City of Vancouver Cybersecurity WARNING: This is an external email. Do not click links or open
attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Hi James,

Thanks for confirming, we are proceeding with our rezoning application. Please send over the checklist when you get
a chance.

Best,

John

From: Boldt, James <james.boldt@vancouver.ca>

Sent: March 23, 2020 2:11 PM

To: John Abraham <jabraham@pci-group.com>; Huang, Emily <Emily.Huang@vancouver.ca>
Subject: RE: 3609-3687 Arbutus St

HI - I'm back. | believe as Emily said that the City’s position is that if scheduled for the next few months, the
requirement for a pre-app open house would be waived. So Arbutus would be exempt as | understand it. | don’t know
if anyone would voluntarily hold a pre-application open house in any event (and there may be new restrictions
coming into place soon in this regard) but City staff would not be allowed to attend in any event (as City
representatives).

From: John Abraham [mailto:jabraham@pci-group.com]
Sent: Tuesday, March 17, 2020 2:39 PM

To: Huang, Emily

Cc: Boldt, James

Subject: [EXTERNAL] RE: 3609-3687 Arbutus St

City of Vancouver Cybersecurity WARNING: This is an external email. Do not click links or open
attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Hi Emily,
Thanks for the update on the below. | will plan on following up with James next week.
Best,

John

From: Huang, Emily <Emily.Huang@vancouver.ca>
Sent: March 17, 2020 2:15 PM

To: John Abraham <jabraham@pci-group.com>
Cc: Boldt, James <james.boldt@vancouver.ca>
Subject: RE: 3609-3687 Arbutus St

Hello John,

Staff advise that the Pre-application Open House for 3609-3687 Arbutus Street should be cancelled due to COVID-19.
As it is uncertain when a pre-application open house will be able to occur, staff are currently waiving the requirement
for a pre-application open house. You may proceed to the next step in the application process. Please discuss this
with your rezoning planner, James. James will return to work on March 23.

For more information on the City's response visit our website: vancouver.ca/covid19impacts

Thank you,
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Emily Huang | Planning Assistant

Planning, Urban Design & Sustainability | City of Vancouver

Unceded traditional territories of the Musqueam, Squamish, and Tsleil-Waututh peoples
604.673.8329 | emily.huang@vancouver.ca

From: Huang, Emily

Sent: Friday, March 13, 2020 2:07 PM
To: 'John Abraham'; Boldt, James
Subject: RE: 3609-3687 Arbutus St

Hello John,

Thank you for asking Rezoning staff will be meeting on Monday to discuss procedures for open houses during
COVID-19. We should have updates by mid next week.

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
Sent: Thursday, March 12, 2020 8:04 PM

To: Boldt, James

Cc: Huang, Emily

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

Given the recent news surrounding COVID-19 and BC banning public gatherings greater than 250 people, | was
wondering what effect that might have on the pre-app open house.

Please let me know if you have any updates.
Best,

John

From: Boldt, James <james.boldt@vancouver.ca>

Sent: February 20, 2020 4:25 PM

To: John Abraham <jabraham@pci-group.com>; Huang, Emily <Emily.Huang@vancouver.ca>
Cc: Jared Stern <JStern@pci-group.com>

Subject: RE: 3609-3687 Arbutus St

Hi John seems fine to me.

From: John Abraham [mailto:jabraham@pci-group.com]
Sent: Thursday, February 20, 2020 4:01 PM

To: Huang, Emily; Boldt, James

Cc: Jared Stern

Subject: RE: 3609-3687 Arbutus St

Hi Emily & James,
Please see attached our pre-app open house notification. Let me know if you have any comments.
Best,

John
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From: Huang, Emily <Emily.Huang@vancouver.ca>

Sent: February 20, 2020 11:22 AM

To: John Abraham <jabraham@pci-group.com>; Jared Stern <JStern@pci-group.com>
Cc: Boldt, James <james.boldt@vancouver.ca>

Subject: RE: 3609-3687 Arbutus St

Hello John,

Apologies for the late response and getting you the electronic labels - they are attached here. | ve also copied the pre
app notification information here again for your convenience. We ve recently added more wording to assist
applicants with their mail campaigns:

In preparation of your pre-application open house, we require you to ensure notifications arrive in residents
mailboxes (property owners and renters, businesses and absentee owners) 2 weeks in advance of the pre-application
open house date. To perform the mail out you have the option of using Canada Post s Snap Admail or an alternative
mailing service provider as long as they are able to notify all property owners and renters, and businesses with the
defined notification boundary (notification boundary is attached). The City will provide a separate mailing list
containing the absentee owners (attached in this email).

Using Canada Post Snap Admail: Please note that when creating your mail campaign on the Canada Post Snap Admail
website it takes approximately 3 weeks for notifications to arrive in mailboxes as they are being printed and mailed
out from Ontario. As a result, please give yourself 5 weeks in advance of the open house date to create your mail
campaign to ensure notifications arrive in mailboxes 2 weeks before the event. To ensure efficiency in your
notification timeline, Canada Post campaign mail out happens every Wednesday of the week. If you have questions
on creating notifications and/or need assistance on the timeline, please contact Canada Post Snap Admail line at
1-844-332-6998 and Canada Post staff Sunny Kim will be able to offer assistance.

Notification Boundary: Send postcards to all the properties within the notification boundary. Please note that Canada
Post s Snap Admail boundaries extend beyond the City s defined notification boundary. Please ensure the entire area
within the City s notification boundary is captured in the mail out.

Guide to Hosting a Pre\u8209 -application Open House: Included in this email is the guide to hosting a pre-
application open house. Notably the City has recently added zero waste guidelines on page 2 Section 3. Do refer to
this section for further details on minimizing waste as part of the City s Zero Waste 2040 Strategic Plan.

Please be advised that the mailing label files are provided for the purposes of a notification letter regarding the City
of Vancouver’s rezoning application process. Under the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act, these
labels contain important third party information, should be used only for the purposes provided, and should not be

duplicated, copied, or re-used.

If you have any questions related to the above, please let me know. Thanks,

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
Sent: Friday, February 14, 2020 3:33 PM

To: Huang, Emily; Jared Stern

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
Electronic labels would be perfect.
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Thanks and have a great long weekend!

John

From: Huang, Emily <Emily.Huang@vancouver.ca>

Sent: February 12, 2020 10:43 AM

To: John Abraham <jabraham@pci-group.com>; Jared Stern <JStern@pci-group.com>
Cc: Boldt, James <james.boldt@vancouver.ca>

Subject: RE: 3609-3687 Arbutus St

Hi John,

Sounds good. Please let me know about the labels, from my email below.

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
Sent: Wednesday, February 12, 2020 10:17 AM

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

Yesterday afternoon we decided to push the Pre-Application Open House to April 14th, it will likely be at the same
location. | will keep you updated if anything changes.

Please let me know if you have any questions.
Thanks,

John

From: Huang, Emily <Emily.Huang@vancouver.ca>

Sent: February 12, 2020 10:13 AM

To: Jared Stern <JStern@pci-group.com>

Cc: Boldt, James <james.boldt@vancouver.ca>; John Abraham <jabraham@pci-group.com>
Subject: RE: 3609-3687 Arbutus St

Hello Jared,

Apologies for not responding to this email. James has a city led open house on the same night — can you let me know
if you already booked the venue for March 10?
Please let me know if you would like hardcopy mailing labels or electronic.

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

From: Jared Stern [mailto:JStern@pci-group.com]
Sent: Friday, January 31, 2020 9:02 AM

To: Huang, Emily

Cc: Boldt, James; John Abraham

Subject: [EXTERNAL] RE: 3609-3687 Arbutus St
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Please be advised that the mailing label files are provided for the purposes of a notification letter regarding the City
of Vancouver s rezoning application process. Under the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act, these
labels contain important third party information, should be used only for the purposes provided, and should not be

duplicated, copied, or re-used.

If you have any questions related to the above, please let me know.

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
Sent: Wednesday, January 22, 2020 2:51 PM

To: Boldt, James; White, Robert

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

Thank you and | look forward to working with you on this project. | will be in touch with you and Emily over the next
couple days to discuss next steps.

Thanks!

Jared

From: Boldt, James <james.boldt@vancouver.ca>

Sent: January 22, 2020 1:16 PM

To: White, Robert <Robert.White@vancouver.ca>; Jared Stern <JStern@pci-group.com>
Cc: Huang, Emily <Emily.Huang@vancouver.ca>

Subject: RE: 3609-3687 Arbutus St

Thanks Robert

Jared et al- | ve cc d Emil Huang here she is our planning assistant in the housing rezoning group. While the pre-app
open house of course is the proponents to put on and run, we can provide a few things such as any city boards (as
pdf s) for printing by yourselves or mailing lists/ labels (which is recommended because this list will also form the
basis of the City led open house notification). As well we have recommended black out dates which we prefer open
houses not to be held on if possible.

Thanks,

James

From: White, Robert

Sent: Wednesday, January 22, 2020 12:01 PM
To: Jared Stern

Cc: Boldt, James; Park, Ji-Taek

Subject: RE: 3609-3687 Arbutus St

Hi Jared,

Thanks for bringing your team and revised drawings in to discuss the rear setbacks for your 3609-3687 Arbutus St
proposal.

We agreed based on the plans you presented, we re comfortable to explore the next stage, looking towards a pre-
application open house. Please also let James know any concerns/questions you have regarding the calculation of the

moderate income units. Please continue to coordinate with James Boldt for the timing/location/and other details
City of Vancouver - FOI 2021-042 - Page 7 of 229















"Boldt, James" <james.boldt@vancouver.ca>

"John Abraham" <jabraham@pci-group.com>
4/9/2020 9:07:52 AM

RE: 3609 Arbutus St - TAMS - offsite improvements

No it’s ok. We won’t know what Engineering is seeking until we get their comments in the application — then we can
all hash it out if necessary. We had an application where Engineering came back with a requirement for a street signal
upgrade and the developer freaked, even though their LOR mentioned the possibility (and it is a larger project)- so
we just wanted to make sure the LOR “put us all on notice” that for larger projects off-site improvements of this
nature could be sought and projects should have a reasonable contingency built in for these kinds of things.

From: John Abraham [mailto:jabraham@pci-group.com]

Sent: Wednesday, April 08, 2020 3:43 PM

To: Boldt, James

Subject: [EXT] RE: 3609 Arbutus St - TAMS - offsite improvements

City of Vancouver security warning: Do not click on links or open attachments unless you were
expecting the email and know the content is safe.

No problem, would it be worth connecting briefly over the phone either tomorrow or Tuesday?

John

From: Boldt, James <james.boldt@vancouver.ca>

Sent: April 8, 2020 8:54 AM

To: John Abraham <jabraham@pci-group.com>

Subject: RE: 3609 Arbutus St - TAMS - offsite improvements

Thanks — just wanted to make sure the possibility or requirements were flagged in the LOR

From: John Abraham [mailto:jabraham@pci-group.com]

Sent: Tuesday, April 07, 2020 3:34 PM

To: Boldt, James

Subject: [EXT] RE: 3609 Arbutu St - TAMS - offsite improvements

City of Vancouver security warning: Do not click on links or open attachments unless you were
expecting the email and know the content is safe.

Hi James,

See attached the Letter of Response.

There was a request for a TAMs as well as the attached screenshot with regards to off-site improvements.
Let me know if there s anything else we should be aware of.

Thanks,

John
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From: "Boldt, James" <james.boldt@vancouver.ca>
To:  "John Abraham (jabraham@pci-group.com)" <jabraham@pci-group.com>
Date:  4/24/2020 9:34:25 AM
Subject: 3609 Arbutus St

Hi John — we were sent this generic e-mail this mooring to send out to applicants etc. I've only glanced through but
may be of some use:

| am writing to provide you with an update on efforts within the Rezoning Centre in the Planning, Urban
Design and Sustainability (PDS) department during these unprecedented times related to COVID-19. You
may be aware of the City’s news release that Vancouver is still open for business and we in the Rezoning
Centre strive to provide uninterrupted service to the development and construction industry during this public
health crisis. The City and the Rezoning Centre understand the development and construction industries
are essential to Vancouver's economy and will be critical to the recovery effort as we begin to transition out
of these uncertain times. We also realize all businesses and segments of the economy are experiencing
significant stress right now. As partners with the development and construction industry, we are working
hard to ensure our service to you continues with minimal disruption. Please know we are working to
process rezoning enquires and applications, along with development applications to progress this work
within normal and expected timeframes.

We also want to acknowledge that we have experienced minor delays as we transitioned to a remote/virtual
work environment and operation over the initial transitional period, however we have worked through most
of the early technology challenges and believe that many of our new virtual business processes will provide
enhanced service to the development community.

To this end, staff is actively undertaking -

Online submission for enquiries and applications

We are initiating an electronic intake, distribution and review procedure to ensure enquiry and
application intake can continue. This will include some temporary measures until the City is able to
more formally launch electronic plan software technology. We anticipate being able to share the
detailed interim submission procedures with you in the very near future.

Notification procedures

The standard rezoning notification process requires a number of provisions, including the posting of
a site sign on the subject property. We recognize that there may be scheduling challenges
associated with posting of site signs due to trades availability. It is important that adequate and
appropriate public notification be maintained and Staff will work closely with proponents to ensure the
integrity of the public notification process. This may include expanding other notification requirements
to a larger area. Staff will also be providing enhanced information and natification on the rezoning
application web page to ensure the public is aware of upcoming public engagement opportunities
and up-to-date content.

Online public engagement process

In-person Open Houses have been paused given the Provincial Health Office directives to stay
home. We are exploring various engagement approaches to move applications forward, including
enhanced project web pages, recorded presentations, and readily available “virtual” open house
systems. Staff will work closely with applicants to ensure a smooth transition to these new platforms
and procedures.

Boards and commissions

We are coordinating with the various boards and commissions, such as UDP, Heritage Commission
and Development Permit Board, to develop virtual meeting venues to convene those bodies through
various technology and software alternatives. We expect to implement preferred solutions in the
coming weeks and will communicate new procedures as soon as possible.

Council meetings including public hearings

Council meetings are still taking place and information r%%ardlng a reV|se 1 pybl bI| he arin% process is
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4/29/2020 3:06:03 PM
3609 Arbutus St - receipt
20200429140607372.pdf

HI John,

Receipt attached - no problems.

Next step is as discussed to get the pdfs etc. which | will then upload. After that | send a memo to
staff who are on the review list informing them of the application and their reviews.

Thanks,

James

From: no-reply@vancouver.ca [mailto:no-reply@vancouver.ca]
Sent: Wednesday, April 29, 2020 2:06 PM

To: Boldt, James

Subject: Message from "HN154"

This E-mail was sent from "HN154" (MP C4503).

Scan Date: 04.29.2020 14:06:07 (-0700)
Queries to: no-reply@vancouver.ca
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3/25/2020 3:03:34 PM
Emailing: DCL Waiver Request Form - Template - June 2019
DCL Waiver Request Form - Template - June 2019.XLTX

Here is the most recent DCL waiver form. I'll check with housing as to whether there is a new form
given the change with the Utilities DCL.

Your message is ready to be sent with the following file or link attachments:

DCL Waiver Request Form - Template - June 2019

Note: To protect against computer viruses, e-mail programs may prevent sending or receiving certain
types of file attachments. Check your e-mail security settings to determine how attachments are
handled.
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DCL Waiver Request Form

(Projects Proposing 100% Rental - Market & Moderate Income Rental Housing)
Instructions

This form is for 100% rental projects that include below-market Moderate Income Rental Units requesting a DCL waiver.

Applicants are required to provide a rent roll for the residential rental portion of the development. Staff will evaluate the rent roll to
ensure the proposed project meets the requirements under the DCL By-laws and the Moderate Income Rental Housing Pilot Program
Bulletin. This information will be summarized in the Council Report or Development Permit Prior-to Letter and included in the Housing
Agreement.

Applicants are asked to update and confirm their rent roll prior to issuance of a Building Permit (when DCLs are waived) and prior to
issuance of an Occupancy Permit. Once a project is approved (e.g. at public hearing for rezonings) the proposed starting rents for
the market rental units can be increased during the period of construction by the allowable increases under the Residential Tenancy
Act until coccupancy. However, rents for the Moderate Income Rental Units cannot be increased ahead of occupancy, and rent
increases in these units are permanently capped at the anually published RTA maximum allowable increase.

In addition, to qualify for a waiver all units must comply with the maximum average unit size as prescribed the DCL By-law. To assist
staff in checking for compliance, the Architect of record must verify the average unit size and a signed Letter of Confirmation must be
submitted along with this waiver request form.

Applicants should complete the white (non-greyed) areas of the form; staff will complete the greyed areas.

For more information regarding rent increases, please refer to:
https://www2.gov.bc.ca/gov/content/housing-tenancy/residential-tenancies/during-a-tenancy/rent-increases

SUBMISSION
Project Address:
Date: YYYY/MM/DD Submitted by:
PROJECT TYPE (Check applicable box)
Rezoning No Rezoning

STAGE IN PROCESS (Check applicable box)
Rezoning Application Public Hearing Housing Agreement
Development Permit Application Prior-to Approval __ Building Permit Application
Occupancy Permit Application

A. RENT ROLL - Market Rental Units

Bedroom Type Starting Monthly Unit Size (Net area)
Unit # (select from drop-down Rental Rate m?
menu) %) ft2

B. RENT ROLL - Moderate Income Rental Units

Bedroom Type Starting Monthly Unit Size (Net area)
Unit # (select from drop-down Rental Rate m?
menu) %) ft2
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INTRODUCTION

BACKGROUND

VDZ + A Consulting Inc. was contracted by PCl Group to prepare an ISA Certified Arborist Tree Report
for the properties at 3609 — 3687 Arbutus Street, Vancouver, BC.

ASSIGNMENT

VDZ + A Consulting Inc. have been retained by the client to prepare a report to assess the tree(s)
located at 3609 — 3687 Arbutus Street, BC. The Project Arborist, Kelly Koome, performed a site
review entailing identification and visual assessment of the tree(s) on site. A tree survey of all off-
site trees was completed by the client or representative(s).

The Project Arborist will provide recommendations for the retention or removal of tree(s) on this
site based on the existing site conditions and the proposed use of the site. Mitigation of
development impact on the tree(s) has been considered as part of the tree assessment process.

LIMITS OF THE ASSIGNMENT

Kelly Koome’s observations were limited to one site visit on June 7, 2019. No tissue or soil samples
were sent to a lab for identification or analysis. VDZ + A Consulting Inc. located the trees using
existing landmarks and onsite navigation.

TESTING AND ANALYSIS

Kelly Koome used visual tree assessment and mallet sounding to test the trees’ health, condition
and risk level.

PURPOSE AND USE OF REPORT

The purpose of this report is to assist the property owner in compliance with the City of Vancouver’s
Protection of Trees Bylaw 9958.

ARBUTUS STREET (PCI GROUP)
ARBORIST REPORT
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There is no evidence of raptors nests, osprey nests or heron colonies on the site. Removal of trees
however between March 15 — August 15 (date subject to change depending on seasonal nesting
behavior and therefore must be confirmed with City of Vancouver) will require a bird nesting survey.
This is as prescribed by the federal Migratory Birds Convention Act (MBCA), 1994 and Section 34 of
the BC Wildlife Act. It is the responsibility of the owner/developer to ensure they are in compliance
with the city’s regulations governing nesting birds on sites where development is occurring.

Off-site Trees — There are private off-site trees associated with this project.
Municipal Trees — There are City of Vancouver trees associated with this project.

Trees Straddling the Property Line — There are no trees straddling the property line associated
with this project.

TREE PRESERVATION SUMMARY

All the Trees identified on the Tree Retention/Removal Plan and within the Tree Assessment Data
Table have been given their Retention/Removal recommendation on a preliminary basis. Final
recommendations will be based upon design/construction and grading details.

Long-term tree preservation success is dependent on minimizing the impact caused during pre-
construction clearing operations, construction and post construction activities. Best efforts must be
made to ensure the Tree Protection Zone remains undisturbed.

Ongoing monitoring of retained trees through the development process and implementation of
mitigating works (watering, mulching, etc.) is essential for success.
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APPENDIX A

GLOSSARY OF KEY TERMS

Abutment: A structure built to support the lateral pressure of an arch or span, e.g., at the ends
of a bridge.

Adapted Trunk Diameter Method: This method uses the trees age and tolerance to construction
damage to determine the factor that will be multiplied by the diameter to provide a sufficient
tree protection zone given these factors.

Age: The relative age (young, intermediate, mature) within the particular stand of trees or forest.
Algae: Is a simple, nonflowering plant (includes seaweeds and many single-celled forms). They
do contain chlorophyll (but lack true stems, roots, and vascular tissue)

ALR: The Agricultural Land Reserve in which agriculture is recognized as the priority.

Bole: The stem or trunk of a tree.

Chlorotic: Yellowing of plant tissues caused by nutrient deficiency &/or pathogen.

Co-dominant Leaders: Forked dominant stems nearly the same size in diameter, arising from a
common junction.

Co-dominant Within Stand: Individual tree whose height is generally equal to trees (regardless
of species) within the same stand.

Compaction: Compression of the soil that breaks down soil aggregates and reduces soil volume
and total pore space, especially macropore space.

Conk: A fungal fruiting structure typically found on trunks and indicating internal decay.

Dead Standing: A tree that has died but is still standing erect.

DBH: The Diameter of the tree at 1.40 meters above the ground.

Dominant Within Stand: Individual tree whose height is significantly greater than adjacent trees
(regardless of species) within the same stand.

C-rad: Crown radius, is the dripline measured from the edge of the trunk to the outermost
branches of the crown.

CRT: Critical Root Zone

CRZ: Critical Root Zone - The area between the trunk and to the end of the Drip Line.

Fair: Healthy but has some defects such as co-dominant trunk, dead branches.

Feeder Roots: The smaller roots responsible for water and nutrient absorption and gas exchange.
These roots can extend far beyond the Drip Line (or outer canopy) of the tree.

Fungus (singular) / Fungi (plural): Unicellular, multicellular or syncytial spore-producing
organisms that feed on organic matter (including molds, yeast, mushrooms and toadstools)
Girdling Root: Root that encircles all or part of the trunk of a tree or other roots and constricts
the vascular tissue and inhibits secondary growth and the movement of water.

Good: Good form and structure, healthy with no defects.

Hazardous: Significant hazard exists with a high risk of immediate failure; which could result in
serious damage to property or person(s).

Height: Height of tree is approximate.

LCR: Live Crown Ratio — The ratio of crown length to total tree length.

Level 1 Limited Visual Assessment: Limited visual assessment looking for obvious defects such
as, but not limited to dead trees, large cavity openings, large dead or broken branches, fungal
fruiting structures, large cracks, and severe leans.
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APPENDIX A

Level 2 Basic Visual Assessment: Detailed visual inspection (aboveground roots,

trunk, canopy) of tree(s) may include the use of simple tools to perform assessment (i.e. sounding
mallet, trowel, measuring tape, binoculars). The assessment does not include advanced
resistance drilling of trunk.

Level 3 Advanced Assessment: To provide detailed information about specific tree parts, defects,
targets, or side conditions. May included aerial inspection, resistance drilling of tree parts,
laboratory diagnosis of fungal or plant tissue.

Mildew: Is a minute powdery or web-like fungi (of different colours) that is found on diseased or
decaying substances.

Moss: A small, green, seedless plant that grows on stones, trees or ground.

No Disturbance Zone: (Trunk Diameter x 6) + Trunk Radius + (60 cm excavation zone). For
example, a 50-cm diameter tree would have a No Disturbance Zone = 3.85 meters measured from
the edge of the trunk.

Poor: multiple defects, disease, poor structure and or form, root and or canopy damage.
Phloem: Plant vascular tissue that transports sugar and growth regulators. Situated on the inside
of the bark, just outside the cambium. Is bidirectional (transports up and down). Contrast with
xylem.

Phototropic: Growth toward light source or stimulant.

Retain & Monitor: Monitor health and condition of tree every 12 months for signs of
deterioration.

Root Crown: Also, called the root collar, it includes the flare at the base of the trunk and the
initial roots that develop below the trunk. These roots generally taper and subdivide rapidly to
form the root system of the tree.

SPEA: Streamside Protection and Enhancement Area

Spiral Decline: The health and condition of the tree is deteriorating.

Sub-dominant Within Stand: Individual tree whose height is significantly less than adjacent trees
(regardless of species) within the same stand.

Suppressed: Individual tree whose growth, health and condition is negatively impacted by
adjacent tree(s).

TPZ: Tree Protection Zone - The area between the trunk and the Tree Protection Barrier.
Wildlife Tree: A tree or a group of trees that are identified to be retained to provide future
wildlife habitat. Wildlife habitat can exist in tree risks (cavities, dead snags, broken tops). Often
times the tree risk to potential targets (people & property) is reduced by removing that part of
the tree posing the risk of failure, but the tree (or portion of) is retained to provide future habitat.
Witches Broom: A dense mass of shoots growing from a single point, with the resulting structure
resembling a broom or a bird’s nest.

Xylem: Thin overlapping cells that helps provide support and that conducts water and nutrients
upward from the roots all the way to the leaves.

ARBUTUS STREET (PCI GROUP)
ARBORIST REPORT
10 of 16

City of Vancouver - FOI 2021-042 - Page 63 of 229












APPENDIX D

CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY AROUND TREE PROTECTION ZONE

TREE PROTECTION FENCING

ARBUTUS STREET (PCI GROUP)
ARBORIST REPORT
14 of 16

City of Vancouver - FOI 2021-042 - Page 67 of 229



APPENDIX D

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS AND LIMITATIONS FOR OPERATIONS
WITHIN THE TREE PROTECTION ZONE

The Contractor shall not engage in any construction activity within the Tree Protection Zone (TPZ) without the
approval of the Project Arborist including: operating, moving or storing equipment; storing supplies or
materials; locating temporary facilities including trailers or portable toilets and shall not permit employees to
traverse the area to access adjacent areas of the project or use the area for lunch or any other work breaks.
Permitted activity, if any, within the Tree Protection Zone maybe indicated on the drawings along with any
required remedial activity as listed below.

In the event that construction activity is unavoidable within the Tree Protection Zone, notify the Project
Arborist and submit a detailed written plan of action for approval. The plan shall include: a statement detailing
the reason for the activity including why other areas are not suited; a description of the proposed activity; the
time period for the activity, and a list of remedial actions that will reduce the impact on the Tree Protection
Zone from the activity. Remedial actions shall include but shall not be limited to the following:

In general, demolition and excavation within the drip line of trees and shrubs shall proceed with extreme care
either by the use of hand tools, directional boring and/or Air Spade. If any excavation work is required within
the Tree Protection Zone (TPZ), the Project Arborist must be present during excavation, and a trench should
be ‘hand dug’ to a depth of 60 cm outside the Drip Line, to uncover any potential roots. The Project Arborist
should cleanly prune roots and recommend the appropriate treatment for any structural roots encountered.
Knife excavation where indicated or with other low impact equipment that will not cause damage to the tree,
roots soil.

When encountered, exposed roots, 1 inches and larger in diameter shall be worked around in a manner that
does not break the outer layer of the root surface (bark). These roots shall be covered in Wood Chips and shall
be maintained above permanent wilt point at all times. Roots one inch and larger in diameter shall not be cut
without the approval of the Project Arborist. Excavation shall be tunnelled under these roots without cutting
them. In the areas where roots are encountered, work shall be performed and scheduled to close excavations
as quickly as possible over exposed roots.

Tree branches that interfere with the construction may be tied back or pruned to clear only to the point
necessary to complete the work. Other branches shall only be RETAINED when specifically indicated by the
Project Arborist. Tying back or trimming of all branches and the cutting of roots shall be in accordance with
accepted arboriculture practices (ANSI A300, part 8) and be performed under supervision of the Project
Arborist.

Do not permit foot traffic, scaffolding or the storage of materials within the Tree Protection Zone.

Protect the Tree Protection Zone at all times from compaction of the soil; damage of any kind to trunks, bark,
branches, leaves and roots of all plants; and contamination of the soil, bark or leaves with construction
materials, debris, silt, fuels, oils, and any chemicals substance. Notify the Project Arborist of any spills,
compaction or damage and take corrective action immediately using methods approved by the Project Arborist
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LIMITATIONS

This reportis valid for the day the trees were reviewed. This report is not to be re-printed, copied,
published or distributed without prior approval by VDZ + A Consulting Inc.

Sketches, diagrams and photographs contained in this report being intended as visual aids,
should not be construed as engineering reports or legal surveys.

Only the subject tree(s) was inspected and no others. This report does not imply or in any other
way infer that other trees on this site or near this site are sound and healthy.

The tendency of trees or parts of trees to fall due to environmental conditions and internal
problems are unpredictable. Defects are often hidden within the tree or underground. The
project arborist has endeavored to use his skill, education and judgment to assess the potential
for failure, with reasonable methods and detail. It is the owner’s responsibility to maintain the
trees and inspect the trees to reasonable standards and to carry out recommendations for
mitigation suggested in this report.
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PROPOSED SECURED RESIDENTIAL RENTAL DEVELOPMENT
3609-3687 Arbutus Street - Vancouver B.C.

Issued for Rezoning Enquiry - June 21st, 2019



3609-3687 Arbutus Street - Design & Rezoning Rationale

Proposal

This rezoning application is for the development of a six-storey rental building on the west side of Arbutus Street between West 20th and West 21st Avenue under the City of
Vancouver's Affordable Housing Choices Interim Rezoning Policy. The proposal seeks to add 121 new secured market and affordable rental units to Vancouver's rental supply,
including 24 units (20%) dedicated for moderate income households. The project will also offer a variety of unit types including studios, one-bedroom apartments, and 52
(43%) tamily-oriented two and three bedroom units. Vehicle and bicycle parking is accommodated in an underground structure with ramp access from the lane.

In conformance with the Policy guidlines, this proposal seeks to vary from the existing zoning with additional height and density. In providing 100% rental units, and being
located on an arterial street well served by transit, a mid-rise building up to six storeys can be considered. The six-storey building form proposed will help maximize the
availability of secured market and affordable rental units and its location on Arbutus Street near transit and commercial districts is well suited to handle the additional density.

The GFA of this project is 91,597 sq. ft., and the proposed FSR is 2.78, with a total residential area of 91,114 sq. ft. For detailed project statistics, refer to page A1.01.

Context and Surrounding Neighbourhood
The 3609 - 3687 Arbutus Street site is currently zoned RS-1 and is comprised of five single family residential lots. The site is surrounded by RS-1 zoning on all sides, which
transitions into FSD - First Shaugnessy zoning a block to the east, and commerical districts as you move a few blocks to the north or south.

The site is well served by bus routes northbound and southbound along Arbutus Street, as well as eastbound and westbound along West King Edward Avenue, which is two
blocks south. Additional east-west bus routes are within walking distance to the north along West 16th Avenue.

For images related to the current site and surrounding context, refer to pages A0.03 and A0.04.

Sustainable Design & Response to City of Vancouver's Green Buildings Policy for Rezonings:

Under the City of Vancouver’s Green Buildings Policy for Rezonings, this project proposes to follow pathway B - “Low Emissions Green Buildings”. For this pathway, a
residential building is not required to achieve LEED Gold certification. Instead, the project will be modelled in accordance with the CoV Energy Modeling Guidelines to
conform with the Performance Limits and requirements set out for Residential Low-Rise ( < 7 storeys) buildings.

Preliminary strategies to meet the Low Emissions Green Buildings pathway include:

- High performance envelope design that minimizes thermal bridging and maximizes energy efficiency.
- A window-to-wall area of less than 40%.

- Use of low-e double-glazed window systems.

- Masonry, composite metal, and cementitious panel rainscreen cladding systems with punched windows.
- Continuous exterior insulation.

- Residential units will be equipped with Heat Recovery Ventilators (HRVs).

- Residential units will be equipped with operable windows and programmable thermostats.

- Low-flow plumbing fixtures.

- Energy-star compliant dishwashers, clothes washers and refrigerators.

- Landscaped rooftop amenity terrace with urban agriculture.

Design Rationale - Site Opportunities, Massing & Form of Development

The proposed site slopes over 2m down from the south to the north along Arbutus Street, and over 1.5m down towards the west at the lane. In response, the building
massing is effectively split in two, with the north half lower than the south portion, in order to follow the slope of the site, reduce the height, and to minimize grade changes
between the sidewalk and the ground oriented units facing the street. In addition, Levels 5 and 6 are punched out where the building steps to provide amenity roof terraces
facing both east and west. This helps break the massing further and creates the perception of two buildings as you approach the site along Arbutus.

The building provides further massing relief by stepping back continuously at Levels 5 and 6 to create a four storey emphasis and to mitigate shadow impact on adjacent
properties. This also provides generous terrace space for the units on Level 5. Facing the street and the lane, three-storey masonry portals are used to define balconies and
anchor the building with elements that align with the scale of the neighbourhood.

At grade, landscaped garden terraces surround the building using trees and hedges to create privacy as well as to soften the transition to the street and boulevard. For
further details on landscaping, refer to the conceptual landscape plans.
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